
 

 

 Page 1 of 2  

April 30, 2025            EA2425-01 

Note to File 
Line 490 Replacement Project, Imperial Oil Resources NWT Ltd.  
RE: Pre-Hearing conference notes 

The Review Board held a pre-hearing conference on April 23, 2025, form 1:30PM to 3PM. This 
conference took place at the Review Board office with optional virtual attendance. The following 
meeting minutes reflect the discussion had by. The meeting duration was 1 hour and 18 minutes. 

1. Introduction and Round Table 

K’áhshó Got’ı̨nę Committee (KGC): Ceilidh 
Stubbs  

Ɂehdzo Got’ı̨nę Gots’ę́ Nákedı (Sahtú 
Renewable Resources Board (SRRB)): Gillian 
Donald, Caterina Owen, Julia McDonald  

Délı̨nę Got’ı̨nę̨ Government (DGG): Harry 
O’Keefe 

Government of the Northwest Territories 
(GNWT): Lorraine Seale, Hannah Ponsonby, 
Alison Heslep, Rohan Brown 

Government of Canada: Melissa Alexander 
(CANNOR), Chantal Grey (NPMO), Clarisse 
Fiest, Michael Staniewski, Erik Allen (ECCC),  
Lorena Gracia Zayas, Brett Maracle (CIRNAC) 

Imperial Oil NWT Ltd.: Nathan B, Benjamin 
Fraser, Sam Bird; Brad Gilmour 

Other attendees: Skylar Liman 

Review Board: Alan Erlich, Mark Cliffe Phillips, 
Julie Abouchar (legal), Simon Toogood, 
Malorey Nirlungayuk, Clementine Bouche, 
Melissa Pink 

 

2. Party vs. Intervener 

GNWT/ECC asked a clarification on the Board’s rules of procedure and asked if only intervenors can 
submit closing arguments. The Board responded that is correct.  
 

3. Tips for preparing an intervention 

The Review Board explained the difference between parties and intervenors at the Public Hearings.  
GNWT questioned if a “Technical Report” is an “Intervention.” The Review Board responded that they 
are the same.  
 
The Review Board reminded parties to focus interventions to issues within the scope of Line 490 
replacement EA. 

 

4. Review of hearing procedures and format for formal hearings and community hearings 

The Review Board let parties know there is room on the Board’s Charter flight leaving and returning 
to Yellowknife, however there limited seating for the charter between Norman Wells and Fort Good 
Hope.  



 

 

 Page 2 of 2  

 
SRRB reiterated concerns that key staff cannot be present for the hearings. SRRB asked when the 
agenda for the public hearing will be finalized so that SRRB staff could look at opportunities to attend 
virtually during scheduled topics. The Review Board responded that the agenda will be finalized after 
the May 12 Pre-Hearing Conference. The agenda depends on the timing required by each intervenor. 
However, in the actual hearing, the Chair has the discretion to change the agenda.  
 
The SRRB asked if during the hearing they are unable to respond to a question, or if they wish to ask a 
question of an intervenor, can this occur at another time? The Review Board stated that it is at the 
Boards discretion.  
 
The DGG asked whether closure of Line 490 replacement project is part of the EA. The Review Board 
replied that closure of the Line 490 replacement project is within the scope of this EA. 
 
The SRRB shared their concern of not being able to meaningfully participate in the hearings because 
key staff have other commitments that conflict with the public hearing dates. The Review Board 
responded that they have engaged with parties regarding the proposed hearing dates and that it is 
difficult to accommodate all parties. Due to legislation, the Review Board has a limited timeline to 
accomplish everything it needs to in an EA. The Board is interested in SRRB views, but it also needs to 
hold the hearings when the communities can attend. The Board noted that SRRB can apply to be an 
intervenor and provide its written intervention and closing arguments.  
 

5. Suggestions for hearing presentations  

GNWT questioned if intervenor presentations will be made public. The Review Board stated they will 
be posted on the Public Registry prior to the public hearing.  

GNWT questioned if the Community Hearing is in-person or hybrid. The Review Board stated that 
Community Hearings are intended for the community and there will be remote access.  
 

6. Other matters 

SRRB asked about Imperials responses to information requests as SRRB hadn’t seen the responses 
posted to the Public Registry for this EA. The Review Board clarified that the developer’s responses 
were posted to the Online Review System (ORS) for the Line 490 information requests. The Board 
noted that the ORS information requests are also linked and part of the Public Registry for this EA.   
 

7. Upcoming dates and deadlines 

written interventions are due by April 30, 2025. 
 
Pre-hearing conference, May 12 ,2025. The Review Board will be hosting another pre-hearing 
conference to prepare for the public hearing including the following topics: the agenda, identify 
intervenor’s representatives, and any other matters. The date for this meeting is May 12, 2025. A 
Notice of Proceeding will be issued with further information and an agenda for this meeting.  
 


